
City of Excelsior 
Hennepin County, Minnesota 

 
MINUTES 

EXCELSIOR CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

 
JANUARY 5, 2015 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

 
Mayor Gaylord called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.   

 
Present: Councilmembers Beattie (arrived at 6:17 p.m.), Caron, Miller, and 

Mayor Gaylord 
 
Absent: Councilmember Fulkerson 

 
Also Present:   City Manager Luger, City Attorney Staunton, Public Works 

Superintendent Wisdorf, and City Clerk Johnson 
 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL 

 
Caron moved, Miller seconded, to approve the agenda.  Motion carried 3/0.   

  
3. CITY COUNCIL GOALS 
 

 Luger said that staff recommends that the Council and the Commissions continue to 
 work on the 2014 objectives in 2015, since many of these objectives are still being 

 researched and discussed.  Luger asked if the Council has any goals to add or if the 
 Council is looking to create a new list of goals. 
 

 Mayor Gaylord asked if any goals were met in 2014; Luger said yes, that the 
 following goals have been completed: 

 
 Consider Financial Tools (grants, tax abatement, TIF, special service districts) 
 Evaluate Irrigating The Commons with Water from Lake Minnetonka 

 Explore the Possibility of Funding from the Three Rivers Park District 
 Look into Creating an Event Policy for Evaluating Proposed Events 

 
 Luger said the Council should discuss whether to add, delete or save the following 
 goals: 

 
 Replacing the Former Courtland Bridge with a Pedestrian Bridge 

 St. Alban’s Bay Bridge 
 
 Caron said the St. Alban’s Bay Bridge shouldn’t be a goal and suggested it be 

 removed. 
 

 The Council discussed the Courtland Bridge and agreed that this goal is lower priority 
 and should be moved to the bottom of the list. 

 
 Miller said the St. Alban’s Bay Bridge goal should stay on the list, in order to 
 communicate to the public that this is a goal that the Council is looking to  



Minutes 
City Council Work Session 

January 5, 2015 
Page 2 
 
3. CITY COUNCIL GOALS - Continued 
 

accomplish.  Wisdorf said this goal is also on the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  
Caron suggested putting it on the 2016 list instead of the 2015 list.  Miller said any 

items that the Council is working on should be on the list. 
 
The Council agreed to remove the ‘Replacing the Former Courtland Bridge with a 

Pedestrian Bridge’ goal and keep the ‘St. Alban’s Bay Bridge’ goal on the list for 
2015. 

 
Luger asked the Council if there are any goals they would like to add.  Mayor Gaylord 
said the 810 Excelsior Boulevard building should be added and said that there have 

been discussions with the Metropolitan Council and that, at their last meeting, they 
talked about forming a project to facilitate receiving transit dollars.  Mayor Gaylord 

said this property would be a reasonable place to develop. 
 

Caron said the Council should discuss what should be done with this property and 
that the City should figure out what to do with the cemetery land and whether 
parking could be put in this area. 

 
Mayor Gaylord said if there are some projects that the City can aggregate into a 

portfolio, the City could develop a transit hub. 
 
Luger said there have been some exploratory discussions on whether there is any 

funding to do a parking structure.  Mayor Gaylord said the City would need to have 
the right things come together to make that happen. 

 
Miller said the key is to lease the property and find out what options the City has.  
Mayor Gaylord said the City should hold onto the property, in order to make more 

revenue for the City.  Caron said the Council needs to think about what revenue 
potential there is but that, whatever is done with this property, it needs to fit into the 

community.  Caron said that transit hubs are generally not attractive. 
 

Miller said there are not a lot of good roads in and out of the 810 Excelsior Boulevard 

area to be a transit hub.  Mayor Gaylord said the transit hub idea is not necessarily a 
single place in town, but that the town is a transit hub to connect Excelsior to other 

areas.  As a transit hub, Mayor Gaylord said it would serve as a biking, light rail, bus 
line hub, etc., and that the thought is to have a joint development with private 
businesses, not just a parking ramp.  Mayor Gaylord said if the City can pull in some 

projects to help qualify for transit funds, it doesn’t necessarily need to be on that 
site.  Mayor Gaylord said if these projects require parking, then the City could 

possibly receive transit dollars to support that hub.  The Council discussed that a 
transit hub would make Excelsior more of a destination city, with connections to 
other types of transit.  Caron suggested that other words be used to describe the 

transit hub so people will understand the idea of a transit hub better.  Mayor Gaylord 
said the transit hub doesn’t need to have direct access to Highway 7 but that people 

would come to Excelsior to connect to other areas, making Excelsior a destination.  
He said this goal could be placed under the 810 Excelsior Boulevard Building goal. 
 

 



Minutes 
City Council Work Session 

January 5, 2015 
Page 3 
 
3. CITY COUNCIL GOALS - Continued 

 

Caron said the goals list is too general and she would like to see the goals be more 
specific and accomplishable. 

 
Mayor Gaylord asked how long the City will try to keep leasing the 810 Excelsior 
Boulevard building without doing something further with the property.  The Council 

discussed the cemetery and Beattie asked how many plots are still available.  
Wisdorf said there are many plots available.  Beattie asked how many plots are sold 

each year; Johnson said six or more.  The Council requested a comparison of rates; 
Luger said she will check into costs of other cemeteries. 
 

Caron asked about the Advisory Commission Policy goal.  Luger said there are 
currently separate policies for each of this commissions and that this goal was to 

create one single policy to cover all of the commissions.  The Council agreed to 
remove this goal.  Caron said each commission should create their own set of 

bylaws. 
 
The Council discussed the 2014 City Council Objectives: 

 
 Goal #1:  Increase Revenue/Decrease Costs 

 
o Explore Local Food and Beverage Tax 

 

The Council agreed to keep this goal; Luger will edit the title. 
 

o Maximize Tax Capacity by Utilizing City-Owned Assets in Our Commercial 
Districts 
 

The Council agreed to keep this goal; Luger will edit the title. 
 

o Improve the Cemetery 
 
The Council agreed to merge this goal with the 810 Excelsior Boulevard 

Building goal. 
 

o Consider Financial Tools 
 
The Council agreed to keep this goal. 

 
o Explore Options for City Hall 

 
The Council agreed to keep this goal. 
 

o Explore Additional Cooperative Ventures with Shorewood and Tonka Bay 
 

The Council agreed to keep this goal. 
 
 

 



Minutes 
City Council Work Session 

January 5, 2015 
Page 4 
 
3. CITY COUNCIL GOALS - Continued 
 

 Goal #2:  Align and Simplify City Processes 
 

o Review Residential Design Standards/Address Size Concerns of New 
Residential Construction 
 

The Council agreed to keep this goal; Luger said staff is currently working 
on this. 

 
o Finalize Assessment Policy 

 

The Council agreed to keep this goal. 
 

o Create Advisory Commission Policy 
 

The Council agreed to remove this goal. 
 

o Develop Traffic Calming Policy 

 
The Council agreed to remove this goal. 

 
 Goal #3:  Promote Excelsior as a Destination by Enhancing Public Assets 

 

o Enhance The Commons 
 

The Council agreed that The Commons goal should be on the joint Work 
Session with the Park and Recreation Commission. 
 

 Evaluate final findings and recommendations of Sandall Marketing 
Study  

 
Mayor Gaylord asked the Council how happy they are with this 
study.  He said he feels it is too vague.  Caron agreed with Mayor 

Gaylord and also said that there are some very controversial items in 
the study.  Beattie said that, when the Council discusses The 

Commons with the Park and Recreation Commission, the Council 
needs to provide them with specific instructions, along with the 
study for reference and a budget for them to work with.  Wisdorf 

agreed that the Park and Recreation Commission needs an outline so 
they can focus on what to do.  Wisdorf said they won’t necessarily be 

able to design it but they should be able to present a concept on 
several items that they think are priority for the parks and then the 
Council may move forward with items for the Park and Recreation 

Commission to work on.  Luger said that the Park and Recreation 
Commission will get easily discouraged if the Council is not willing to 

follow through.  Wisdorf said the Park and Recreation Commission 
would like to work on something new.  Caron said the big picture 
needs to be planned out and then the Council can give the Park and 

Recreation Commission specific projects.  Miller said if the City  



Minutes 
City Council Work Session 

January 5, 2015 
Page 5 
 
3. CITY COUNCIL GOALS - Continued 
 

moves forward with the general sales tax, there will need to be a list 
of projects to work on.  Beattie said the Council needs to find out 

what the Park and Recreation Commission is interested in supporting 
and provide them with a list. 
 

 Assess park structures, amenities, use policies, and public/private 
partnerships 

 
The Council agreed to keep this goal. 

 

 Take a look at creating a master plan for fee based (free for 
residents) beach area, playground, picnic, tennis and basketball 

court 
 

The Council agreed to keep this goal. 
 

The Council discussed the 2014 Commission Objectives: 

 
 Goal #1:  Increase Revenue/Decrease Costs 

 
o Assess Additional Parking Recommendations 

 

The Council agreed to keep this goal. 
 

o Improve Residential and Commercial Docks 
 

 Look into providing lighting, signage, water, and better security 

 
The Council agreed to remove this goal. 

 
 Research the feasibility of extending the residential docks 
 Analyze rates 

 
 Goal #2:  Align and Simplify City Processes 

 
o Explore Modifying the Planned Unit Development Review Process & 

Evaluate Application Standards for Commercial Applications 

 
The Council agreed to keep this goal. 

 
o Look into Aligning the Heritage Preservation Ordinances with the City Code 

 

The Council agreed to keep this goal. 
 

o Analyze Property Storage Ordinances to Eliminate Multiple Trailers, Cars, 
etc. 
 

The Council agreed to keep this goal. 



Minutes 
City Council Work Session 

January 5, 2015 
Page 6 
 
3. CITY COUNCIL GOALS - Continued 
 

 Goal #3:  Promote Excelsior as a Destination by Enhancing Public Assets 
 

o Evaluate Irrigating The Commons with Water from Lake Minnetonka 
 
The Council agreed to remove this goal. 

 
o Explore the Possibility of Funding form the Three Rivers Park District 

 
The Council agreed to remove this goal. 

 

o Look into Creating an Event Policy for Evaluating Proposed Events 
 

The Council agreed to remove this goal. 
 

o Research Enhancing Excelsior-Studer Park 
 
Mayor Gaylord said he thinks the garden fees should be increased or the 

City should change the use of this park. 
 

 Explore adding mini golf, batting cages, etc. 
 
Caron suggested removing this goal.  Mayor Gaylord said it’s another 

way to use the park. 
 

The Council agreed to leave the rest of the goals and objectives on the list for now and 
will discuss these at another meeting. 
 

Luger said she will schedule joint Work Session meetings with the advisory 
commissions. 

 
4. CITY MANAGER’S PERFORMANCE REVIEW 
 

 Luger said she is looking for Council feedback for the 2015 City Manager 
 performance review.  Beattie said the review should be a more formal process as a 

 group.  Miller said that, in the past, the review was done by Lisa Lynn, which was a 
 nice process and not very expensive.  Caron said she liked the job Ms. Lynn did and 
 that Ms. Lynn will also facilitate the review process.  Beattie said there should be a 

 formal structure.  The Council agreed; Luger will add the City Manager performance 
 review to the Work Session schedule. 

 
5. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 Caron moved, Beattie seconded, to adjourn at 6:57 p.m.  Motion carried 4/0. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

Shirley Johnson 
City Clerk 


